
Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

1

CARLIN CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF CARLIN, STATE OF NEVADA

REGULAR MEETING
CARLIN MUNICIPAL COURT ROOM

101 S 8th Street
Carlin, NV

May 13, 2015, 7:00 p.m.

Call to Order and Roll Call:

Mayor Donnetta Skinner called the meeting of the City Council to order at 7:00 p.m.

Council Members Present:  Mayor Donnetta Skinner
Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield
Councilperson Jay Duke
Councilperson Pam Griswold

Absent: Councilperson Bob DeMars
1. Administrative Staff: City Manager David Jones, City Clerk LaDawn Lawson, Public Works 

Director Carlos Esparza, Police Chief Dennis Fobes, City Engineer Tom Ballew
2. Present: Thomas Burney, Kathy Burney, Debbie Beck, Isabelle Bender, Bill Bender, Lila Sexton, 

LeAnna Johnny, Mark Pressman, and Karla Jones.

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment will be taken prior to any Action Being Taken by the Council

I. Comment by the General Public: Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2C) this time is devoted to 
comments by the general public and discussion of those comments. No action may be taken 
upon a matter raised under this item until the matter has been included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an action item. (Non-Action Item)
1. Karla Jones  reported the Fire Department got an offer on a used power lift  gurney , which 

normally cost about $38,000.  The offer w as for $14,000 and the LLC made a motion to 
purchase that  gurney .  She said that Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated maybe the Council 
could help with the purchase if needed.

2. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield agreed.
3. Mayor Donnetta Skinner inquired about the gurney.
4. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated this is the same  gurney  that they have on the ambulance 

and helps the EMTs with the patients, saving a lot of back strain with patients. 
5. Mayor Donnetta Skinner inquired if they needed that expensive gurney on the other ambulance.
6. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated this would be half price.
7. Karla Jones  stated it came from POOL/PACT and figured it has cut down on back  and  shoulder 

injuries by at least 25%.  The LLC is purchasing it and were looking at funds in the budget to 
assist with it.  She stated they were asking if the Council could do half of the cost.  

8. Councilperson Jay Duke stated if the LLC has already purchased it, they are requesting if the 
City would fund some of it.  

9. Councilperson Pam Griswold inquired if they already have one and if they could get a grant for 
it. 

10. Karla Jones  stated she has not found any grant for it. She is just checking to see what can be 
done.  

11. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated they need to agenda it.
12. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated at the meeting, they said that prior to this the City had 

matched their funds.  He told  them it was up to the Council and he looked at the fact that it 
saves injuries to the firefighters.  Half price for the same quality merchandise is a “good deal”.



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

2

13. Councilperson Jay Duke stated in the long term it may be a good idea, but the City might not 
have the funds and may not be able to help.  

14. Karla Jones stated they jumped for it because they only had one left and it would pay for itself.
15. City Manager David Jones introduced the new Senior Center Director Deborah Kay Beck.
16. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated she is glad she got the job.

II. Review, discussion and possible approval of a  Request for Funds and a Letter of Intent to 
Meet Conditions from the USDA for the Main Sewer Lift Station located at 4 th  and Oak 
Street and all related matters. (Non-Action Item)
1. City Manager David Jones reported that  Lisa Goodfellow , USDA Rural Development  of 

Community and Schools  was here at the last meeting and is available by phone.  It is a request 
to just set aside the funds. The City is not taking out a loan.  If we gave the loan back to them or 
decided not to use it in the future, the City could do that without any penalty.     The biggest 
advantage in doing this is the 3.5% interest rate locked in.  It is a 40-year term and payments 
would be $5 , 033. 00 p er month and $504 .00  in Debt Service reserve fund  until it accrues one (1) 
annual payment of $60 , 396.00.  The short-lived assets fund, which has not  been  restricted, 
would be $22,767.00 and they can use that if a pump goes down or something else in the 
system.  

2. Councilperson Jay Duke inquired about when they would have to act on the 3.5%.
3. City Manager David Jones stated “The sooner the better, the end of this quarter”.
4. Councilperson Pam Griswold  stated they have already heard from Public Works and the issues 

and we need to start working on.
5. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated this is something we need to do.
6. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield moved for  approval of a  Request for Funds and a Letter of 

Intent to Meet Conditions from the USDA for the Main Sewer Lift Station located at 4 th 

and Oak Street  and all related matters.      Councilperson Pam Griswold seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried. 

III. Review and discussion  and   possible approval  to allow Carlin Crossing LLC.  to  reallocate and 
use $ 150,000.00 of the $ 380,500.00 referred to as the “Escrow Performance Guarantee” to 
cover the costs associated with the proposed Infrastructure Bond Financing  and all related 
matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Marion Hose  stated  since this is a big  matter;  she wanted to ensure she was present.  The 

money was posted in  2012 when they purchased the land to advance the project and we feel this 
is the best application of the funds to make sure we keep moving along.  

2. Paul  Tanguay , Developer  for Car lin Crossing   stated  he has been a developer for 35 years in five 
different states and the difficult challenge that we face is financing.   “ It is not unusual to have 
delays in projects this size, but we did expect to start last year.  There are two  (2) primary 
reasons: 1, we are  coming out of the largest real estate crash in history and 2, bankers say for 
development loans to construct and build streets, utilities before you have vertical construction 
is very difficult to get financing for.   In December 2012, the Hoses closed on the first parcels in 
Carlin Crossing.  In that transaction,  it was negotiated that a performance bond was required, 
which is a fairly usual request.  At the time it was $450,000.00 and the deposit typically means 
that the public agency wanted to make sure the developer was going to perform.  There were a 
number of other developers and other parties that had come before you with promises of 
development for the land.  The first parcel closed on December 2012; my first Council meeting 
was December 2013; the second parcels closed on March 16, 2014; the Development 
Agreement was approved on May 14, 2014; preliminary grading began on August 2014; some 
of the first meetings to consider financing was March 4, 2015.  All in it is 2.5 years or 31 
months that we have been on the project and I can tell you the bottom line is that we are still 
here and committed.  Another point to add is that over $3.1 million invested so far.  That 
includes land costs, site work, design and engineering, equipment, project management, legal, 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

3

accounting, marketing, pre-development fees.  The Hoses on the title that we own have been 
reluctant to talk about those numbers, but we felt that at this  juncture is where we are and this 
opportunity with financing, we think it is important it goes on record.  From the standpoint of 
what exactly the performance deposit, there are a number of reasons why dates were not met, 
we want to demonstrate to you that we have for almost 31 months  been  here  and plan  to stay 
here,  to develop the property.  We have discussed the parties we have and the financial 
resources we have and the investors.  This is our number one hurdle right now that if you can 
work with us, we know we have everything else, at least a huge majority of what we need to get 
started and actually come out of the ground.  

3. Councilperson Jay Duke asked for clarification of the $380,000 or $360,000.
4. City Manager David Jones replied, $380,000.
5. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated they have shown a lot of credit in trying to get this done.  I 

think we are at a crossroads right now and we need to get - off dead center and say yes, get 
moving on it.     “I do not want Carlin to be a ghost town.  I say give them the money and let 
them get working on it”.

6. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated Paul Tanguay noted he has resources in place.
7. Paul  Tanguay  stated once we have demonstrated that we have the go ahead on the 

infrastructure, the roadways and underground, we have people lined up to do the vertical. 
8. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield  inquired  he  (Paul  Tanguay )  said $3.1 million in costs, which of 

the items mentioned is not a normal cost.
9. Paul  Tanguay   stated  site work, engineering, desig ning,  project  management, legal and 

accounting, pretty much all of these.     They are all planned, budgeted and part of a normal and 
the reason they were listed was to show their commitment and performance.  He would say that 
there has not been a $450,000 deposit put up in most developments he has worked on and that 
is our money that is on hold.  “We are asking for your help in this matter because quite frankly 
no one had any idea we would run into the roadblocks in terms of financing the roads and we 
found after talking to other cities, this method has been used to break this logjam”.

10. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated she has been the “naysayer for years because it has been a mess 
twice.  It made me  leary  to put my name on this.  After the last couple of months after meeting 
with Marion Hose and Mr.  Tanguay , I have changed my mind and I think it is time for us to 
help if we can to get this going.  The money was our security blanket, so I was hesitant to 
giving that up.  Now that you have gone this far and spent this much money, I really do not 
think you are going away.  But when I use this money, I want it to help and you have proven 
that is going to do it.  I agree with the rest of the members that we need to give y ou every 
possible way of
helping ”.

11. Thomas Burney stated, “I appreciate the sentiments and I  appreciate the heartfelt part about 
deciding Carlin’s future”.   He discussed the new things coming to Elko and encouraged the 
Council to focus on getting this done, as Elko would not be a help to Carlin’s future.  “What we 
have here now cannot shoulder the load   of us continuing to be a city.  I cannot stress this 
enough.  It may well be if we do not get this done that we cannot function as a City, because 
you cannot have the bills or money you have to spend if we shoulder these ourselves”.

12. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated the people are  “ fighters and would not let this happen.  Most of 
the time, we have talked to people in town and that is how we vote.   It is not our money we are 
spending so we want to make sure we are doing the right thing.  I think the new addition is 
going to be good for Carlin and we are on our way to having our City bigger and better than 
ever”.

13. Paul Tanguay stated this would give the chance to start the roadways.
14. Councilperson Jay Duke  moved for  approval  to allow Carlin Crossing LLC.  to  reallocate 

and use $150,000.00 of the $380,500.00 referred to as the “Escrow Performance 
Guarantee” to cover the costs associated with the proposed Infrastructure Bond 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

4

Financing ,  and all related matters .   Councilperson Pam Griswold   seconded the motion. 
The motion carried.  

IV. Review, discussion and possible approval of  appointing Scott W. Shaver with  Stradling   Yocca 
Carlson &  Rauth , P . C. to assist the City Attorney as Bond Coun se l in the development of the 
SID/SAD for the Carlin Crossing Project and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. City Manager David Jones reported  Mr. Shaver bring s  a unique understanding of this process to 

the City of Carlin.  He contacted Bob  Goicoechea  about working with Mr. Shaver and he was 
happy to continue working with him.

2. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated  she was impressed with these men and how they knew about 
the City and Bob  Goicoechea  told her they were laying it out like it should be and if the 
Council did not understand something they were saying, they could contact him and he would 
explain it.  He said to trust them.

3. Councilperson Jay Duke inquired on how this would funded.
4. City Manager David Jones stated it is funded on the last motion.
5. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he did not see a scope of work.
6. Paul  Tanguay  stated  he   cannot speak for them, but from what we found out last time, I can tell 

you that  they have done a lot of these special district funding projects .   He assumes they will 
provide the City with what they need.

7. Mark Pressman,  Wullf  Hansen & Co.  stated  they are proposing to serve as financial advisor to 
the City; Scott Shaver would be your lawyer relative to the SID financing.  They work together 
closing in coordinating the process.  Scott Shaver is charged to make sure that everything is 
done in accordance with the law.  Our function as advisor to the City is to coordinate this whole 
program between City, staff, Counsel, developer, the financing to coordinate all the parties so 
that it moves forward and does not get bogged down.  We have a fiduciary responsibility and 
relationship with the City,  I am  charged with putting your interests ahead of our own. We are 
your protector in essence.  We coordinate all the parties and organize it to move forward to the 
point where we introduce a bond underwriter that would be the banker for the transaction and to 
educate them on the project so that they are willing to go into the marketplace and sell the 
bonds to investors, whether institutional or private.  We cannot do that because our relationship 
is with the City.  The underwriter is going to be involved in a commercial arm’s length 
transaction where their interests may be different than those of the city.  B y  law, we are charged 
to keep our actions separate.  We are here to guide the process and to be a resource to both the 
City and the developer.  We will advise both the developer and the City on what is the most 
appropriate way to keep the project moving forward”. 

8. Discussion was held on what would happen if the City did the bond and everything went 
“poof”.

9. Mark Pressman stated the City would have no legal or financial responsibility.
10. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated he met with Mr. Shaver and I feel very comfortable  that 

he is going to help.
11. Councilperson Jay Duke stated they have had one group present with their qualifications, do we 

have another choice. 
12. City Manager David Jones stated he is sure they have choices if they go looking.
13. Councilperson Jay Duke stated the City is not paying for this, but we are hiring these people to 

work with us.  It seems odd that we have only interviewed one group.  
14. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated that she has changed her mind since meeting with them the first 

time and after doing some research and I pretty much know what you have done over the past 
few years.  I have to say I was really impressed with what you have done.  I came to the 
conclusion that you would do a good job for our City and I am glad that you are on board.   We 
could not get through this process without someone like you doing this process”.

15. Mark Pressman stated that when he gets involved in a project.  This is not an easy project from 
our standpoint of public financing.  When I get involved in a community, I put my heart into it. 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

5

I will do my utmost to work in your favor.   
16. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated for years Carlin has been on the outside looking in and most of 

our money goes to Elko.  This happening would put us up there too.  
17. Mark Pressman stated this is a diamond in the rough and has potential.
18. Councilperson Pam Griswold  moved  approval of  appointing Scott W. Shaver with  

Stradling   Yocca  Carlson &  Rauth , P . C. to assist the City Attorney as Bond Coun se l in 
the development of the SID/SAD for the Carlin Crossing Project   and all related matters.    
Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield seconded the motion.  The motion carried.

V. Review discussion and possible approval of appointing Mark Pressman and Ben Levine with  
Wulff , Hansen & Co as Municipal Financial Advisors in the development of the SID/SAD for 
the Carlin Crossing Project and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1.   Councilperson Pam Griswold moved for approval  of appointing Mark Pressman and Ben 

Levine with  Wulff , Hansen & Co as Municipal Financial Advisors in the development of 
the SID/SAD for the Carlin Crossing Project and all related matters.     Vice Mayor Lincoln 
Litchfield seconded the motion.  The motion carried.

VI. Review discussion and possible approval of a request to extend the main waterline  North  on 
Tuscarora Road starting at Fir Street and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Jackie  Wiscombe  read a letter to the Carlin City Council members,  I, Jackie  Wiscombe , am 

asking th e city for a decision to either split the costs of an 8” waterline totaling 880’, with the 
first 360’ all paid for by the city until  til  it meets my property, and then with 2 added fire 
hydrants on Tuscarora Rd.  O r  for the city to ask the engineer, Tom Ballew, to write a 
‘hardship letter’ due to high costs of said waterline.  Melissa with the state in Carson has 
approved a well if a ‘hardship’ letter and required forms are filed, to avoid the extreme costs 
for domestic water use. ¶The quotes from contra ctors range from $62,000 to $78, 000 plus 
engineering costs of 15% and contingency costs of 10%.  Also most contractors are extremely 
busy and time can be of the essence on making water available for a home site. ¶A quote from 
Hackworth Drilling  Inc.  is also attached for a water well in this area, that of approx. $15k.  ¶It 
is unreasonable for one private individual to incur all the costs for the construction of a public 
utility.  And as you can see, the road is a dead end at the I-80 freeway.  The maximum 
connections on this lime ‘could’ be 3 and a reimbursement lasting as long as 40 years is 
beyond my lifetime, and is not a feasible investment for the city.  ¶I sincerely thank you for your 
considerate prompt attention in this matter.  I love the American spirit and ability to prosper in 
our great nation, to encourage individuals life, liberty and pursuit of happiness!

2. Engineer Tom Ballew reported Jackie  Wiscombe  wanted to split her property a year ago an d  at 
the time she had water service to the other property.  This property down below does not have 
water.  This year she came to us and asked and our biggest concern is water and fire hydrant 
service.  I met with her and City Manager David Jones and determined that we needed some 
kind of numbers to get a waterline to that property.  He showed the water extension on a map. 
Currently it ends at the intersection of Fir and Tuscarora Road.   She has roughly  300‘ of 
waterline that would have to be built.  Through code under waterline extensions, it talked about 
3 different ways; the first is extend by the applicant, second, where water is required to extend 
100 feet from the existing and that is the case here.  Under that method, she would fund the 
entire projects.  The City over time would levy a fee to any new property owners     It  is up to 40 
years and up to 90%.  The last method is a special  reimbursement agreement  is that the City 
would work with you for just about anything you want and justify reimbursement on  any basis 
other than that provided in the reimbursement section, the Board may authorize a special 
reimbursement contract by the city and person or persons constructing the main extension. 
That is what Jackie  Wiscombe  is asking, some kind of joint venture project. The discussion  
held on drilling a  well, I would, unless advised differently, I would protest a well by a third 
party applicant.



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

6

3. Mayor Donnetta Skinner inquired if there are other people beyond Jackie.
4. Tom Ballew stated there are.  “I do not know that you could force those people to do this”.   He 

discussed a situation on the Eureka road, which the city did not protest.  
5. Jackie Wiscombe stated she would not have the money.
6. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated an 8’ water line is a lot of water for five (5) properties. 

He questioned what supplies the four lots along Tuscarora Road on the west side.
7. Tom Ballew related that one was a mobile home park and the water comes in to service that 

entire park.  The 8” the city supplied before was not for domestic use; 1” service would be 
adequate for each individual property.  ¾ is standard.

8. Jackie  Wiscombe  stated a 1” line would be metered.   The purpose to sell that property is to 
begin to build our own house on the 3.7 acre at the top of 13th Street.

9. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he is not in favor of another well within the City.  Splitting the 
cost seems to be the more favorable solution, but even at that, I am not sure we can afford that.  

10. City Manager David Jones stated there is money in the Utility Fund.  He inquired what is their 
intention on the 4.7 acre piece?

11. Discussion was held on parceling the property and referring to the map.
12. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated this is too expensive for the City to put in a waterline for 

just one person, but to spend that money on one house is too much.
13. Jackie Wiscombe stated that there would be two.
14. Councilperson Pam Griswold agreed if they are able to sell that property.
15. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she would prefer to put in a waterline than wells.
16. Councilperson Jay Duke stated this project is just a smaller scale development and we do not 

want to “chase this away.  We want to build and allow development”.
17. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated if this approved and the second fire hydrant and there is a 

path right there under the freeway; is it possible to extend that line over to Carlin Crossing.  
18. Tom Ballew agreed, but what “you don’t want to consider is running it under the overpass. 

That does not work”.  It was considered and discussed many years ago.  This could be a 
secondary water source.

19. Councilperson Pam Griswold confirmed that basically what Ms.  Wiscombe  is asking that the 
City do the first 360 feet and you would split the 520’ with two hydrants.

20. Jackie Wiscombe replied affirmatively
21. Discussion was held on the estimates.
22. City Manager David Jones explained the approximate reimbursements to the City and Ms.  

Wiscombe.
23. Councilperson Pam Griswold inquired if someone decided to tie into the system in the future if 

they would pay the City.
24. Tom Ballew agreed.   She is responsible for half the cost of and that is what she is opposing 

that she pay half.  There are no other players to reimburse.   He stated there is an exhibit that 
based on frontage show the obligations of each of the other properties would be.  

25. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated that what she wants the City to pay for would be the 
property she wants to build a house on and another piece you are holding to sell.  

26. Jackie Wiscombe stated, “Hopefully 2 homes”. 
27. Discussion was held on curb, gutter and sidewalks and that it is a separate issue.
28. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she does not want to put wells in this area.
29. Discussion was held on water extending to Carlin Crossing development and Mr. Ballew 

showing on the map.  
30. Thomas Burney inquired about the existing homes and the distance of the fire hydrant
31. Tom Ballew explained the fire code gives the  parameters  of how far you can have the water  

running;  essentially it is 500’ between homes.  There are other rules that talk about 150’ hose 
lengths.

32. Tom Burney stated there is a string of homes right there that have no fire protection now and 
the first time there is a fire and that new fire hydrant is reachable, it might be priceless.  It 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

7

should be considered.  
33. Discussion was held on the estimates.
34. John  Urenda  who lives next to the property.  When she was building the fence, I asked if she 

was going to leave us leeway.  We have a fire hydrant on the corner and her fence is in the way. 
When she built her fence she cut me off and we do not have an alleyway.

35. Jackie  Wiscombe  stated she went to City to see if they were going to put a road in there and 
they were not.  

36. Councilperson Jay Duke stated that is a good point and he is glad Mr. Urenda brought it up.
37. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she is surprised there is no alleyway there for fire and safety.
38. City Manager David Jones stated this gentleman borders the cemetery.
39. Clay Anderson stated he has the last property on the other side and everything over there is 

really old.  I think my house was 1957, so I do not know how your infrastructure and anything 
you hook up past there is already expensive.  

40. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated building a well is a  band - aid  fix.  We need to think about 
extending it in a better way.

41. Clay Anderson stated he would like to work together on a well and extend the pipes later. 
Right now there is no fire hydrant near me.  

42. Councilperson Jay Duke stated we do not want to be derelict in having an opportunity to extend 
this line and place those hydrants to have the fire protection.  Additionally, for wells, I do not 
fully understand the water table in that area.  I do know the more wells we put in that area 
would draw down on that water table and we do not know how that would affect the City wells. 
I am not in favor of the well, because I do not have the information to make that decision.  

43. Discussion ensued over the wells and extension.
44. Tom Ballew stated the City has a legal responsibility to serve within their service areas. 

Sometimes situations like this make it difficult, but you need to try to make a way to do that. 
This is beyond anybody’s means to afford.

45. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated they should be looking at the benefit of putting it in.  Wells are 
unpredictable, but putting a line would be long term.  

46. City Manager David Jones stated they really need an addendum.
47. Tom Ballew stated this is a preliminary design not a final.  The number are estimates.
48. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated she would like more information before a decision is made.
49. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they need the Engineer to tell them what it is going to be.
50. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated they do not know what  is  there, is it an aquifer or something 

else.  
51. Councilperson Jay Duke stated every well you drill into the country is an entry point for 

contamination.  
52. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated they have been told over the years that is not a good idea.  “We 

need some figures from Tom Ballew on the cost”.  
53. Tom Ballew asked for confirmation that he finish the design and get cost estimates.
54. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated that is the only way they can proceed.   She discussed replacing 

older lines. 
55. Councilperson Jay Duke moved to table  approval of a request to extend the main 

waterline  North  on Tuscarora Road starting at Fir Street and all related matters .  Vice 
Mayor Lincoln Litchfield seconded the motion.  The motion carried.  

56. Jackie  Wiscombe  stated she did come before the Council last year and noted there is a fire 
hydrant 750 feet from this house. 

VII. In accordance with the Open Meeting Law a Public Hearing will be opened at this time to 
review, discuss and possible approve a City of Carlin Resolution, Resolution number 2015 - 
05, a resolution finding it in the best interest of the public to sell City owned real property 
without offering the property for sale at public auction or below fair market value under NRS 
268.063 and all related matters.   The Public Hearing will take place after 7:00 P.M. May 13, 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

8

2015.  (Possible Action Item)
1. Discussion was held on the resolution as the previous sale did not go through.
2. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated this time it has not been offered for public auction.
3. City Manager David Jones stated the City Attorney because there was an offer and he 

suggested they could sell it on the current appraisal for 410 Hamilton Street of $15,000 by Mr. 
William  Tessler .   The City Attorney prepared Resolution 2015- 0 5 for the City.  The couple 
interested in purchasing this will give $500 earnest money and at the close they would owe 
$14,500 through escrow.  He noted  LeAnna  Johnny has already ordered a house  for  the 
property.  It would come back on May 27 to finalize the sale.

4. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner confirmed there is nothing she  ( LeAnna  Johnny)  has to worry about 
the sale not going through.  

5. City Manager David Jones read:  (4)  The  establishment of residential housing needed to support 
the establishment of new commercial enterprises or facilities or the expansion of existing 

commercial enterprises or facilities   or  5) Any combination of the activities described in 
subparagraphs (1) to (4), inclusive, to create and retain opportunities for employment for the 

residents of the City.
6. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner  stated no one has been  living on the property for years and why is it so 

hard to sell this to these people and let them go ahead.
7. City Manager David Jones stated this is a process for the public in case there is opposition, so 

that there are no improprieties in the sale.  This makes the sale transparent.
8. Lila Sexton inquired about the process and they have contacted the contractors and all of it is in 

Elko at present.  When she gives the earnest money, she inquired if that was the final sale.  
9. City Manager David Jones stated  they would post the Resolution and give it two weeks.  The 

execution of the contract would be on May 27 at which time the $500 is due. 
10. Lila Sexton stated on May 28 is the date for the earnest money.
11. City Manager David Jones stated the mayor will sign the resolution on May 27 and you can 

watch her sign it and pay the funds.  
12. Councilperson Pam Griswold moved to  approve a City of Carlin Resolution, Resolution 

number 2015 - 05, a resolution finding it in the best interest of the public to sell City 
owned real property without offering the property for sale at public auction or below fair 
market value under NRS 268.063 and all related matters.     Councilperson Jay Duke 
seconded the motion.   The motion carried.

VIII. Discussion and possible approval of  the minutes from  4/8 /2015 , and all related matters. 
(Possible Action Item)
1.  Councilperson Jay Duke  moved for   approval  of  the minutes from  4/8 /2015 , and all 

related matters.    Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield  seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
with.

IX. Review, discussion and  possible approval of payments for the periods  4/22/2015 to 5/13/2015 
 and all related matters.   (Possible Action Item)
1. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield  moved  for   approval of payments for the periods 4/ 22 /2015 

to  5/13/ 2015   and all related matters .   Councilperson Pam Griswold  seconded the motion. 
The motion carried.

X. City Council Members’ Reports. (Non – Action Item)
1. Councilperson Jay Duke stated there was a motion at NNRDA to stop the Lone Canyon Project 

and the County is skeptical on that. They did approve a budget for Lander County and they are 
going to do a video.  

2. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated the Senior Center had bricks donated for the garden from 
Home Depot.  The Western Heritage Days and Carlin is on line now to talk to the tribal council 
and Wells is not buying into the event.



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

9

3. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield reported the Fire Department had their meeting and are looking 
to change their bylaws.  The Planning Commission has to develop a chapter about chickens for 
Title 3 and work on a couple of other chapters.   

4. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she and City Manager David Jones went to meetings in Reno 
and they are very concerned about having the proper backup of our system, because it is not if, 
but when we get hacked into.  She stated there is a device they might want to look into.

5. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield inquired about the cost.
6. City Manager David Jones replied $330.00 explaining that POOL/PACT is going to purchase 

400.  
7. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they need to ensure that the back-up systems are up to date in 

case they get hacked.  They received a plaque. She stated Margaret Johnston has been a driving 
force with the clean-up.  She stated the owner of a property gave them $100 for getting his 
property cleaned.  She suggested they reach out to citizens to help them.

8. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated it promotes a positive for the City by helping neighbors.  
That is what community actually means.  We have to be willing to reach out, regardless of age.  

9. Councilperson Jay Duke stated it also promotes, “They are going to do that, I am going to let 
them”.

10. Margaret Johnston stated they cleaned up a property 2 years ago and he has able-bodied 
children who do not help.  “I personally do not want to go back there again, but we gave them a 
chance.  Give them a hand up, not a handout.  There was a lady last year that we cleaned her 
yard and she showed up this year to help with the City cleanup”. Enforcement is working.

11. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they have people who work 8-12 hours a day and cannot help.  
“Today we got some young people who came to help.  It made me feel better, but I think that 
Carlin is better now than it has been; it is not as dirty. Carlos Esparza told me he does not want 
to do cleanup any more, but as long as I am mayor, I want you to do cleanup”.

12. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated the person who paid $100 is able to hire someone to clean 
his property.  I hate to see Carlin set a precedent.

13. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated you cannot always tell if someone can do their own.  You 
cannot always find someone to do this for you or they cannot afford to pay. 

14. Margaret Johnston stated you have a foothold in fining them after you have cleaned up a yard.
15. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated Carlin is moving in the right direction and we have to 

encourage people to do their own.  I would like to have an award or something for the best yard 
or most improved of the month.  

16. Margaret Johnston stated it could just be a sign, not a monetary award. Get a committee from 
the seniors.   

17. Chief Fobes discussed city employees and using public monies.
18. Thomas Burney stated the American Legion has funds that we were willing to help someone 

who needs it on a one-time basis.  The Legion can be asked for their help and money to pitch in.
19. Councilperson Pam Griswold inquired about the dump.   Could the dump be open one day on a 

weekend per month.
20. Councilperson Jay Duke stated people would take advantage of that; it is not structured.
21. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated behind the con camp and Mary’s wash, there is garbage 

dumped.
22. Margaret Johnston stated the City Dump should be open 7 days a week.  She lives on that 

corner and sees people come with truckloads of stuff on the weekend.  I do not see them come 
back on Monday.  

23. Thomas Burney stated the dumpsite is not open on Saturday, it is not to our credit to make it 
difficult to dump.  We need to make it as easy as possible.  

24. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated she would like to see that.
25. Councilperson Jay Duke stated it is open now and they are not using it.  We are talking about 

number of occurrences and frequency rate. This is really what dictates a decision.  Is it 15 
separate clumps at these different places or is it five people.  The number dictate leaving that 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      May 13, 2015

10

dump open.  
26. Chief Fobes stated they have cited quite a few for dumping out there and for the record, most of

the people do not use the dump anyway.  Nobody wants to pay for the dump when they can use 
Mary’s wash.  

27. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she has received complaints about the 20+ years old that are 
running off the young kids at night and on the weekends from the park.  That needs to be 
looked at.  She had a complaint today.  

28. Chief Fobes stated the park says it closes at 10:00 p.m.
29. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they need to remember that they are there to protect and serve 

and they each need to remember that.  
30. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated Park & Rec gave her some information to check on some 

grants and it is basically a foundation that takes care of Washoe County first. However they 
only give money to 503 (C)s.  When I told Ellen Meshefski she wanted to know if there was a 
possibility that Park & Rec could be a 503 (C).  She is not sure how to check it. 

31. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated it has to be a private entity and this group is under the City 
so they would not qualify.  

32. Thomas Burney stated he would like the City to consider a 5 mph speed limit in the alley of 4th 
Street to 1st Street, along with that the Chief and Clerk have a letter I submitted a long time ago.

33. Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield stated it is already 5 mph.
34. Margaret Johnston stated it is not posted.

XI. City Clerk’s Report. (Non – Action Item)
1. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson had no report.

XII. City Manager’s Report
(Non – Action Item)

XIII. Comments by the General Public: Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2C) this time is devoted to 
comments by the general public and discussion to those comments. No action may be taken 
upon a matter raised under this item until the matter has been included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an action item. (Non-Action Item).

XIV. Adjournment. (Possible Action Item)
Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield  moved for adjournment with  Councilperson Pam  Griswold 
seconding the motion.  The motion carried.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:22 p.m.

APPROVED:

DONNETTA SKINNER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
      CITY CLERK LADAWN LAWSON


